7‘

PUBLIC NOTICE

City of Lockhart
Planning and Zoning Commission
7:00 PM, Wednesday, November 13, 2024
Municipal Building — Glosserman Room
308 W. San Antonio St.

AGENDA

Call meeting to order.
Citizen comments not related to an agenda item.
Consider the Minutes of the October 23, 2024 meeting.

ZC-24-07. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a request by Mirza Tahir Baig on behalf of Buckhorn
Holdings LLC for a Zoning Change from IL Industrial Light District to CHB Commercial Heavy Business
District on a total of 2.321 acres known as Lockhart Industrial Park Il, Lots 12 and 13, Resubdivision 2,
located at 1701 and 1705 South Commerce Street.

Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda items.

Adjournment.

Posted on the bulletin board in the Municipal Building, 308 West San Antonio Street,
Lockhart, Texas, at 10:00 a.m. on the 6" day of November, 2024,



City of Lockhart
Planning and Zoning Commission
October 23, 2024

MINUTES
Members Present: Philip Ruiz, Ron Peterson, Julia Haug, Phil McBride, Manuel Oliva
Members Absent: Rick Arnic, Bradley Lingvai
Staff Present: David Fowler, Evan Olszewski, Romy Brossman
Visitors/Citizens Addressing the Commission:

1. Call meeting to order. Chair Ruiz called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

2. Citizen comments not related to an agenda item. None.

3. Consider the Minutes of the Qctober 9, 2024, meeting.

Commissioner Haug moved to approve the October 9, 2024, minutes. Commissioner Peterson
seconded, and the motion passed by a vote of 4 - 0.

Commissioner DOliva entered the meeting post-vote.

4. Hold a PUBLIC HEARING and consider a Text Amendment to Chapter 64, Article VIl “Zoning
Districts and Standards,” Section 64-198 “Performance standards for commercial and industrial
districts,” Subsection (c) “Nuisances,” to raise the allowable noise levels for commercial
properties adjacent to residentially zoned properties.

David Fowler introduced the subject at hand and showed several possible revisions. The hearing
is in response to a local business owner who has received numerous complaints regarding
outdoor live music events held on the property. The owner has requested sound levels of 75
decibels be allowed on similarly situated commercial properties abutting residential zoning
districts between 7 AM and 10 PM. This represents a more than 20 decibe! increase over the
allowed level and is 5 decibels greater than the allowable level for a property abutting an
industrial district.

Mr. Fowler presented tables, charts, graphs and studies comparing Lockhart to other peer cities
as well as an overview of noise ordinance studies created by professional organizations. The
information shows that while Lockhart’s noise standards are lower than other cities in the
studies, they are not so low as to stand out as an outlier among peer cities. City planning staff
does not have a recommendation regarding whether the allowable sound levels should be
revised but advises the Planning and Zoning Commission to consider whether the current
regulations are an undue constraint on existing businesses or whether the quiet enjoyment of
residential neighborhoods outweighs the request for greater levels of sound to be allowed on
commercial properties, particularly those abutting residential areas.
-1-
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 10-23-2024



Chair Ruiz asked, who enforces the noise ordinance?

Mr. Fowler responded, a combination of Police as well as Planning and Code Enforcement Staff.
Any complaints that occur at the time, wiil be responded to by the Police. City Staff would
respond to ongoing use and compatibility concerns.

Chair Ruiz inquired about “wiggle room” with decibel levels when a complaint is called in, much
like a speed limit ... a police officer may provide a warning when a driver is 2 or 3 miles per hour
over a speed limit.

To which Mr. Fowler confirmed and agreed, authorities may allow for a small deviation.

Jesse Hernandez, of 203 E. Pecan St. Lockhart, stated that currently the limit is 55 decibels, and
they’ve had 4 noise related police reports. When making this decision he would like noise
ordinance levels from neighboring towns, Kyle, New Braunfels, Bastrop to be considered. The
city's noise ordinance is out of date as the city grows. The needs of businesses need to be
considered and at the same time we need to be fair across the board.

Commissioner Haug moved to approve Text Amendment to Chapter 64, Article VIll, Section 64-
198 and Subsection (c) “Nuisances” with the recommendation to adoption the Georgetown Code
of Ordinances Chapter 8.16 Noise Control levels, the addition of the exempted Downtown Events
in section 36-3, a recommendation to look into acquiring portable sound deadening equipment
and lastly a recommendation to consider creating new noise limits covering noise created within
residential areas. Commissioner Oliva seconded, and the motion passed with a vote of 5 - 0.

5. Discuss the date and agenda of the next meeting, including Commission requests for agenda
items.

David Fowler stated the next P&Z Meeting will occur November 13™, when a zoning case will be
heard.

6. Adjournment.

Commissioner Peterson moved to adjourn, and Commissioner Haug seconded. The motion
passed by a unanimous vote, and the meeting adjourned at 8:25 p.m.

Approved:

{date)

Romy Brossman, Recording Secretary Philip Ruiz, Chair

-2
Planning and Zoning Commission Regular Meeting 10-23-2024



k1 1500
13120
1328 31
1400
o 1213
o 1330 1315 _
09
1317
1401 1406
201 1327 1240
1410
1405
1407 1408
1409 o 1405
1408
1411
1411
fe 1415
1414
NAKER DR 1421
1501
i 215
m
1418 " s 5
115 : 218
i 17 n 214
1420 103
18
14
1601
101 e PI
103 \
105 100
1oz 102 RLD
104 p
- CHB
. .
1701
1703 1706 .
1o mn
e |
PI 1712
1700
1703 s 201
1714
119 ‘\
1708 \*3
1720 ! lL ““\
171 115
P
1122 411
121 1724
e 14
112
1801 1800
1806
11
1810
L7 BT
wr | ()
o=
; 1824
wes OO e
173
-
1825
1830
1831
o 1% s 1904 - Walan
; AT
IH e 1908
1908
1901
910

IH

1420

3 1422

1423

1515

AO

2001

"RMD ..

RMD

{RMD

20

D
oMt

1C-24-07
ILTO CHB

1701 & 1705 S COMMERCE ST

ig aEe

| | ]
b mp
- Ea

scale 1" = 600’ - -

LN ]

SUBJECT PROPERTY

ZONING BOUNDARY
CITY LIMITS
200 FT BUFFER



15 0QV¥0102 S

1C-24-07
IL TO CHB

1701 & 1705 S COMMERCE ST

scale 1" = 600’

ZONING DISTRICTS
[l AcricULTURAL-OPEN SPACE
[f| commERciAL HEAVY BUSINESS
COMMERCIAL LIGHT BUSINESS
['] coMMERCIAL MEDIUM BUSINESS
[ mousTRIAL HEAVY
~ INDUSTRIAL LIGHT
[l pusLic AND INSTITUTIONAL
['] RESIDENTIAL HIGH DENSITY
'*! RESIDENTIAL LOW DENSITY
| | RESIDENTIAL MEDIUM DENSITY




F UTU R E LA N D Us E & B EXISTING COLLECTOR | | AGRICULTURE/RURAL DEVELOPMENT
B exstincarveriaL ] GENERAL-HEAVY COMMERCIAL
T H o Ro U G H FA R ES B Furure coLLecTor [l INDUSTRY
B FurvrearterinL ] UGHTMEDIUM commERcIAL
[ PusLic AND INsTITUTIONAL

”_ TO C H B [ resiDENTIAL, HIGH DENSITY

[] resioenTIAL, Lo DENSITY
RESIDENTIAL, MEDIUM DENSITY

1701 & 1705 S COMMERCE ST scale 1" = 600"




17 XTW ISIM T




PLANNING DEPARTMENT REPORT = ZONING CHANGE

CASE SUMMARY

STAFF: David Fowler, Planning Director CASE NUMBER: ZC-24-07
REPORT DATE: November 7, 2024

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION HEARING DATE: November 13, 2024

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: November 19, 2024

REQUESTED CHANGE: iLto CHB

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: Pending

BACKGROUND DATA

APPLICANT: Mirza Tahir Baig

OWNER: Buckhorn Holdings LLC

SITE LOCATION: 1701 and 1705 South Commerce Street (FM 1322)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Lockhart Industrial Park I, Block 2, Lots 12 and 13, Resubdivision 2
SIZE OF PROPERTY: 2.321 acres

EXISTING USE OF PROPERTY: Vacant land

LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION: Industry

ANALYSIS OF ISSUES

REASON FOR REQUESTED ZONING CHANGE: The purpose of the zoning change is to allow development
on 2.321 acres on the southwest corner of East Martin Luther King Industrial Boulevard and South
Commerce Street (FM 1322). The proposed rezoning has been submitted because the applicant sees
developing the property with retail uses that are not permitted in the site’s current IL zoning. The site is
vacant land with few if any trees and no floodplain present.

AREA CHARACTERISTICS:
Existing Use Zoning Future Land Use Plan
North Industrial IiL industry
‘ o CMB, RHD, tndustry, 'Generai {“Ieauy .
East Vacant land, residential in ETJ ET) Commercial, Medium Density
Residential
South Commercial, Vacant land IL, CHB Industry
West Vacant Land fiL Industry

TRANSITION OF ZONING DISTRICTS: The subject property is located along a part of the MLK and South
Commerce corridors that that is mostly zoned Industrial west of South Commerce Street with a mix of
Commercial, industrial, agricultural and residential zoning nearby. The area to the east of the site has
been the site of two recent zoning changes to residential districts, but these sites have yet to develop.



ADEQUACY OF INFRASTRUCTURE: Vehicular access will be from both MLK and South Commerce Street.
There are traffic intersection improvements planned at the intersection that are related to upcoming
residential and mixed-use developments. There is an 8-inch water main along East MLK as well as a 12"
line along South Commerce Street. There are 12-inch wastewater lines on both abutting streets that are
adequate to serve the property.

POTENTIAL NEIGHBORHOOD IMPACT: The subject property is in a largely undeveloped area of the city
where there are no immediate neighbors that would be impacted by the development which would be
allowed in the proposed zoning district. Future traffic from the site onto nearby streets would present a
minor regional impact. TXDOT may require traffic improvements, depending upon the

CONSISTENCY WITH COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The proposed CHB zoning classification is not consistent
with the industry classifications shown on the future Land Use map. However, the proposed Lockhart
Comprehensive Plan, which could be adopted by the date of the hearing, shows that retail is considered
appropriate in the Seawillow district, in which the site is located.

ALTERNATIVE CLASSIFICATIONS: None

RESPONSE TO NOTIFICATION: None to date

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: Approval



ZONING CHANGE APPLICATION

CITY OF
Lockhart s zenme
P.O. Box 239 « Lockhart Texas 78644
T E X A s 308 West San Antonio Street
APPLICANT/OWNER

APPLICANT NAME Mirza Tahir Baig, PSCE

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE 912-238-6422

E-MAIL psce@psceinc.com

OWNER NAME BUCKHORN HOLDINGS LLC

DAY-TIME TELEPHONE 912-507-4108

E-MAIL adnounal@aol.com

PROPERTY

ADDRESS 2205 W Parmer Lane, Ste. 201

Austin Texas 78727

ADDRESS 1701 & 1705 S Commerce Street

Lockhart, TX 78664

ADDRESS OR GENERAL LOCATION 1701 & 1705 S. Commerce Street, Lockhart, Texas 78644

LEGAL DESCR!PT'ON (IF PLATTE D) LOCKHART INDUSTRIAL PARK Il, BLOCK 2, LOT 12,13, RESUB #2, ACRES 0.971, 1.35

Size 2321 ACRE(S)

LAND USE PLAN DESIGNATION

INDUSTRIAL LIGHT (IL)

EXISTING USE OF LAND AND/OR BUILDING(S) Undeveloped

PROPOSED NEW USE, IF ANY Gas Station, General Retail Sales, Convenience Store

REQUESTED CHANGE

FROM CURRENT ZONING CLASSIFICATION "IL"

TO PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION

C\h

REASON FOR REQUEST

The proposed development is 8,006.25sf General Retail Building with 4 MPD's (8 fuel pumps)with

from FIVI1322 and E MLK Blvd The 10'-0" wide 5|dewalk along the bUI|dlng frontage and 5'- 0” W|de

buﬂdmg and not ws;lble from the E MLK Blvd




SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

IF THE APPLICANT IS NOT THE OWNER, A LETTER SIGNED AND DATED BY THE OWNER CERTIFYING
THEIR OWNERSHIP OF THE PROPERTY AND AUTHORIZING THE APPLICANT TO REPRESENT THE
PERSON, ORGANIZATION, OR BUSINESS THAT OWNS THE PROPERTY.

NAME(S) AND ADDRESS(ES) OF PROPERTY LIEN-HOLDER(S), IF ANY.

IF NOT PLATTED, A METES AND BOUNDS LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY.

APPLICATION FEE OF $250, PLUS $150 PER ACRE, MAXIMUM OF $10,000, PLUS ADDITIONAL $1,000
FOR PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT.

APPLICATION FEE OF $598.15  pPAYABLE TO THE CITY OF LOCKHART.
TO THE BEST OF MY KNOWLEDGE, THIS APPLICATION AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTS ARE

COMPLETE AND CORRECT, AND IT IS UNDERSTOOD THAT | OR ANOTHER REPRESENTATIVE
SHOULD BE PRESENT AT ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS CONCERNING THIS APPLICATION.

SIGNATURE Mirza Tahir Baig A_’//JF—H"L & DATE 10/11/2024

OFFICE USE ONLY

ACCEPTED BY W RECEPTNUMBER 01%2.€04>

DATE SUBMITTED [o-1{-201LY casE NumBerzC - 21 - 01

DATE NOTICES MAILED ___ \W82§-2.02.1 DATE NOTICE PUBLISHED |03 1-2011

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION MEETING DATE W\ \%-20 .M

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE

DECISION




Docusign Envelope 1D: BOO38C38-BDBY9-4541-B02B-724BA5AB716B

BUCKHORN HOLDINGS LLC

Date: September 12, 2024
To Whom It May Concern,

We, Buckhorn Holdings LLC, the legal owner of the properties located at 1701, 1705,
1709, & 1711 S. Commerce Street, Lockhart, TX 78644, hereby certify that we own
the aforementioned properties.

We authorize Professional StruCIVIL Engineers, Inc. and its assigned
representatives fo act on our behalf in submitting applications, documents, and other
related materials necessary for zoning changes, plats, replats, and any other related
land use or planning activities concerning the properties. This authorization grants
the applicant the ability to represent us in all relevant discussions and proceedings with
municipal, county, or other regulatory authorities.

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate
to contact us.

Sincerely,
| l lone {lurowis
X gwam X j W
Steve Hall John Chronis
Director / Partner Director/ Partner
Buckhorn Holdings LLC Buckhorn Holdings LLC
Phone: Phone:
Email: Email:

Page 1 of 1



B e
E i
'l

.‘I;F l:'_'[i!l
| §¥ - I s
i o
] ‘;! & § il’i i! »
il;’l > dif
b i
5 ol jialf
H 1e¥ [t
i i
i fifis >

targ g, % ol
Jlll i 1 \ re o
i E ]5 b
I N e :
,l;] i T a >
oy w1l 3 H
B il T P R
LU E]l , 8 -
MRl | 2
3 ; N iR M |g BB
» ! a 5 el
T B me :ET
i § i : i I » B g
R I hil 3 &= 'E'
» _ 9 § b ad
jn i e 4o n P I )
A iR Tt D) il R fEas
Earaval LRi1 T
A 'ﬂ e il - e
i i i tiﬂ NN }il; - ol
! f I b el E;‘.; g ¢ = B
A | i ‘;l ! N P
_'{ 3 ii w o R E!;gi m :-‘11'! @
Hoekd ] b Ik
H é}:; l%; g_ .‘ r! 10 5 e
&y IO -
¢ Z
@
s
-J"f-u""

a3 jDld W PEpPJcDaL SO PIsARY i IDd
AUNOD [|SMPIRD 1DWSST 1o AJ1D BUy

Ipqusy
o 11 Yied [eLusnpuy Jey3poy

SRBH || #ibd [DIISNPUl JOWpa0eT Jo | q20l1g ‘g 107
»

ISIAT

D gClL BpiS ¥ 3PUIqD
-

Buipmipgnsas ‘'soxa)

w 5—v Aaaing abuioon sawor ayy pup Z—v Aaaing Aissg ‘4 94} jo Ine sBUdb /0708

{

Jo jejd uo

7 *ON UOISIAD

‘I SPIS ¥ 3SUIQED 10|d Ul PSPIOOFL SD 'pa

IDLYSNPU| 30RO JO | DCIE T 107

S %p
. o ad
- ; & T
. S 4 [ w
: B ’ H i 155 L
| g W iNg
%E ¥ i) e Jgii ji— e g o
(O i . S
'ﬁ : ] i - fér\“w': £, o
?‘{ o il
H HE . A = “h
i iil _-'.r -
2.5 3 A .
\ H A H Ke
43 MYl
1% [ i s
& !
g T [
m 'l I
& ¥ ;F%
~i g 2 ti kI
ks i '
H
§§§§ 3
T gg
. t2 i :

ABhsHF
9s-¢

ol shse#
559




|
|

''''''''''''' ; 8
—————— 77U, s. Highway # 183 % -
(1 ROW) B o § I_, S =
I T g
e | 1

T
L =

Y

3

!5 -

— B
1 5
€ \¥

S W

a3
1
f3- -
¥ o
g
-
=
et S-
- Z.
; 3
3 g
¢ 5
=
A
""" W\
[ S
_____ ;
/ ---------- RS ‘(\\
"""""""" ¥ N
_________ by
R
e
At
1 1-2 /'::’
i g
i g
5
2 2 i b4 2 ?
sl sy §8: 8k 8@y i[iggg /// ’ )
ol bl bl W 5 g
GRURUBURUSUHELT o
i ki i 3 !i ‘i Ei Iii Eii i {iii ii}i xgigsi 5! ;! :i:i ii =§i5'i "’Hli ‘H
ah -:f lﬁ' t _.q -ae I“q.q it ?q,: xa ;q EI" i: 1 I‘!‘: i |l
7 u ge g2 ! t i : hi
CIEE I ﬂiiggiig 3{5’{ ﬁ;; i l ;;ﬁ,i :ei !} } iligi I H!H ; ; ; ig; :;J%} liﬁl
o [LRRED T (S R R
§ ::%gi &g !g- i' g 11 Ts si }E % E ii’! ig ﬁii Jg l.fE Eh :g ia :;i i,‘ li ‘:a l! ;?i 'é; (L I;}i
E@ §72 3is o Hy i{ S nordy oSl 0 iRl ey it u;,; ,!, e my e 2 5;11
35 R R '“g i "1 sf ‘!‘ !i sl!; i} ]i?;"; 15} abs Pha gy B 0 n;m 11:3
g 3 i jt i i w116 i i '! R AT Y
"1;§7 EL %% g;il__ ¥ ;!I)‘,_!zdl ;!l!%;‘;iii!i"‘!tdgiif;iit:u ‘;“I"'I =Ilr
!Sﬁ ll 5i.r !:5 ld!ﬂrv&t,il;airu ‘g{!q!;! gz Eif IH!'} ﬁ;
il e dippdE o HESTETL IR e n AR
8 i il- EI- F g : - i ' ;; H i h i $e i ‘: i i & B 1 2 " |;l
T AR H I L
i 5 A IS §EH;{E_!_::}E!.!gisulgm R




